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Introduction  
 

ñThe Groveò was built by Thomas Blount on land purchased in 1795 and was 

described by Jeremiah Battle in 1810 as, ña very good house, the best that is in the 

countyé on a beautiful eminence, overlooking the town.ò  

  

Imagining away the Italianate shed porch added circa 1850, one sees a handsome 

Federal-style house, consisting of five bays and a gable roof. A central doorway is 

present on the front and rear faces, surrounded by shuttered windows of original nine-

over-nine sash. An impressive modillion cornice looms overhead and original double 

beaded yellow pine weatherboarding surround the building. Finally, two pairs of double-

shoulder Flemish-bond chimneys encase the sides and frame original fanlight windows in 

the attic.  

 

Inside, dentil molding saved from the original Federal-style pediment stoop 

porches and placed above the open doorway between the front and back central halls, 

greets the visitor in a novel mid-nineteenth century attempt at recycling. The house 

features a central hall plan with two rooms on either side in the symmetrical form of 

Federal homes. The doors are original, with the exception replicated brass locks. Original 

cypress floors can be found on all levels. The English-style basement was an efficient 

storage area for the 350-acre plantation served by the house.  Now lost are numerous 

dependency buildings that were located on the western side of the house. A portion of a 

foundation was discovered in 1994 during an archaeological dig, and was likely a kitchen 

or cookhouse. 

  

The paint colors replicate the decoration scheme of Captain and Mrs. John L. 

Bridgersô remodeling on the eve of their 1850 wedding date. Evidence of the original 

grained paint decoration can be found on several doors and moldings on the first floor. 

This was a provincial eastern North Carolina attempt to emulate the marble halls of the 

great houses of England, the mother country of many Tarboreans.  

 

After the Blounts died, the house was owned by Colonel Louis D. Wilson, the 

namesake for Wilson County. Colonel Wilson owned ñThe Groveò from 1831 until his 

death in 1847, during the Mexican War.  

 

 Colonel John L. Bridgers and his wife, Rebecca Dickens Bridgers, purchased the 

house around 1850. Rebecca died in 1865 and John remarried Mary Elizabeth Battle. The 

renovation in 1850 added the wrap-around porch to the Federal home. The house was 

once again sold in 1880.  

 

 The Blount-Bridgers house has undergone slight physical alteration but has served 

a variety of purposes through the years: a private resident, a private girlôs academy, a 

community center, a library, the temporary town hall, and the Tarboro School offices. In 

the late 1970s, the house was restored and reopened in 1982. The first floor houses a local 

history museum, the second floor contains the Hobson Pittman Memorial Art Gallery, 

and the offices of the Edgecombe County Arts Council can be found in the basement.  
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Office/Keeping Room 
 

This room may have originally been used as an office, a downstairs bedroom, or even a 

keeping room. Like a butlerôs pantry used to prepare food to take into the adjoining great 

room/dining room. A similar sized room was across the hall where the elevator has been 

placed.  

 

The oldest item in the room is the 1775 

original Henry Mouzon map of North and 

South Carolina with their Indian frontiers. 

Both Nathaniel Greene and General 

Cornwallis probably used copies of this map 

during the last year of the American 

Revolution. Tarboro can be found as 

ñTarrburgò, indicated on the Tar River. 

Monika Fleming rescued this important map 

from oblivion during the renovation of the 

W.G. Clark store on Main Street.  

 

 

The Sheraton Period secretary consists of a desk with three 

graduated drawers below a fallboard and two doors that enclose a 

section for letters and other documents. A bookcase surmounts 

this with three adjustable shelves behind glazed doors that retain 

original glass. This desk was the property of Governor Henry T. 

Clark (1799-1870), Governor of North Carolina from 1861-1862. 

The secretary is constructed of mahogany veneers with yellow 

pine secondary wood and made in Edenton circa 1800 by W. 

Manning. His signature can be found on the back of the 

secretary. 

 

 

 

 

Found on the secretary is an oil on 

ivory portrait (left) of Joseph 

Blount by Henry Hopper Meyer and 

also a portrait (right) of Governor 

Henry Toole Clarkôs father, James 

Clark, painted in 1807. 

 

 

 

 

 



Blount-Bridgers House Docent Handbook - April  2012 Page 5 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 
 

In the center of the room is an inlaid mahogany veneer 

center table associated with James West Clark whose 

home is on St. Patrick Street. The table dates circa 1850 

and has been inscribed ñRaleigh,ò on the underside. This 

table may be of local manufacture or used while 

Governor Clark was in Raleigh. It is on loan from Meade 

Bridgers. 

 

In this room is also a rectangular walnut drop-leaf table in 

the Chippendale style. The table utilizes yellow pine as a 

secondary wood and is circa 1800. The presence of 

walnut on the sun bleached three-board top places the 

table of eastern origin as opposed to the darker walnut 

associated with Piedmont cabinetmaking. The varying 

nature of soil compositions are said to contribute to the 

coloration of hardwoods. 

 

 

On the mantle is found a letter from Eliza Carr. This letter is a 

signed document by the second Edgecombe resident to become 

Governor of North Carolina, Elias Carr of Old Sparta. The letter 

reads: 

 

 

 

  

 

June 21
st
 1895 

       His Excellency,  

               Wm. J. Stone, Governor of Missouri,  

  Jefferson City, Miss.,  

Dear Sir:_  

                    I am in  receipt of your kind favor of the 17 th. Instant 

extending me an invitation to attend the Inter - State Competitive Drill at the 

St. Louis Fair, on the 4 th., 5 th. & 6 th. Of July, which I appreciate most highly.  

                    It will give me much pleasu re to visit your State at such 

a time, and I would gladly do so but for the fact that official engagements in 

this State on that very day at the Guilford Battle Ground will prevent. Please 

extend to the St. Louis Fair Association my appreciation of their i nvitation 

so courteously extended though the Chief Executive of Missouri.  

                   With Highest esteem I am,  

                                           Very truly yours,  

                                                       Elias Carr  

                                           Governor of North Carolina   
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Seth Thomas made the clock on the mantle in New York circa 1830. 

The wood for the inner workings of the clock was acquired from a 

Yule tree, which is a coniferous tree used in decoration for the 

Christmas season. The case is made from mahogany. The reverse 

painting on the door depicts a French scene.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

The engraving of the Signing of the Declaration of 

Independence, a painting by John Trumble and engraved by 

Asher Brown Durant is in a period frame circa 1820s.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

This replica chandelier is a tin reproduction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The brass andirons, fender and fireplace 

tools are colonial revival and date circa 

1930. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The adjustable candle stand is constructed of pine. 
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The Great Room 
 

In this room is a portrait of Thomas Blount (1759-1812). This 

portrait is a copy of charcoal on paper by Charles Balthazar 

Julien Feuret de Saint-Memin. St. Memin used a physiognotrace 

to take accurate life-size profiles. He immigrated to America in 

1793 and worked in Baltimore, Richmond, Charleston and 

Washington before returning to France in 1814. St. Memin 

corresponded with Thomas Jefferson on this artistic method. 

Thomas Blount served in congress in addition to being an 

attorney and a large owner of land. He also served in the North 

Carolina legislature. He died while in congress and is buried in 

Washington DC. Blount Street in Raleigh is named for him.  

 

Mary Sumner Blount (1777-1822) was the second wife of 

Thomas Blount, whom he fondly referred to as ñJackieò. 

Hanging in the Great Room is a copy of the original portrait 

hanging in the Mordecai house in Raleigh, where Mrs. Blount 

resided in her later years after moving from Tarboro following 

her husbandôs death. Jackie was the daughter of a 

revolutionary General Jethro Sumner. Having no children of 

her own, Jackie left an extensive will leaving items to over 50 

friends and relatives.  

 

 

Above the mantle in the Great Room is an oil portrait of James 

Smith Battle (1786-1854) by Thomas Sully in original frame 

painted in 1852. James Smith Battle was the founder of Rocky 

Mount Mills, the second earliest cotton mill in North Carolina. 

He lived at Cool Springs on the Tar River, just west of their 

ancestral home. Marion S. Battle has graciously loaned this 

painting to the museum. 

 

 

 

The oil portrait of Mary Lloyd Gregory and her son is the 

only known example of an early 19th century likeness of a 

Tarboro woman and child.  Though primitive in the handling 

of subjects the picture stands alone as an example of the 

status sought by an ambitious woman.  Abandoned by her 

husband, her son goes on to attend the University of North 

Carolina. She was not only the proprietor of a hotel, but also 

owner of a gristmill and was recognized as one of the 

wealthiest citizens of our town.  This portrait surfaced in an 

antique shop in Asheville and was acquired by members of 

Edgecombe Arts Commission. 
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The center table is a walnut drop-leaf 

table circa 1825. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Four matched neo-classic dining chairs circa 1815 surround the center 

table. Made from mahogany with oak as a secondary wood, these 

chairs retain the original finish complete with carved swan back splats 

and original horsehair seat covering. These chairs descended from the 

Matthew Whitaker family of Shell Castle, Halifax County, North 

Carolina 

 

 

The antique mahogany sideboard was built circa 1840 

and is believed to be a creation of local furniture maker, 

F. L. Bond. This piece was originally in the home of the 

Honorable George Howard and is a gift from Betty 

Howard Hand of Costa Rica.  

 

 

 

On the sideboard is found a tea box circa 

1800 from England. Tea was an 

expensive commodity and only the lady 

of the house would have the key to the 

tea box. 

 

 

 

 

 

This small table found in the Great Room demonstrates 

the light and delicate forms popular in the new republic 

after the American Revolution. Constructed from walnut 

circa 1790, this table follows the style of George 

Hepplewhite, an English cabinetmaker. Fifty 

reproductions of this fine table were commissioned by 

furniture maker Julius Whitley to commemorate the 

bicentennial of the Blount-Bridgers House. 
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In this room is a neoclassic mahogany veneer chest of drawers on hairy paw feet. 

  
Using yellow pine as a secondary wood, this piece was built circa 1840. This is in the 

ñlatest N.Y. fashionò as advertised by Lewis Bond in the Daily Southerner of the period. 

The pressed glass pulls appear to be original and the graduated drawers with fanciful burl 

wood fronts place this object in an urban cabinetmaking center. The curved and beaded 

front stiles are noteworthy. 

 

 

 

In this room also stands a gothic china press with spool details on 

front corners. Made of stained poplar circa 1880, two lower 

doors were added for additional storage. 

  

 

 

The cellaret, or brandy case, is 

found primarily in northeastern 

North Carolina or southeastern 

Virginia. This example is made from walnut and is circa 

1780. The yellow pine bottom has lost the bottle dividers 

over time and the hardware has been replaced.  The 

exposed dovetail construction and straight beaded legs are 

late 18
th
 century cabinetmaking details. The Merkle Pulley 

family donated the case to the museum in 1969. 

 

 

 

On the cellaret sits a reticulated chestnut bowl 

and liner, circa 1820. Chestnut bowls were one of 

many china pieces that adorned the tables of 

wealthy southern households. This unique 

Chinese porcelain was a gift from the Tarboro 

Womenôs Club in 1990. 
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The mahogany-veneer desk and bookcase, circa 1860, was 

constructed in the Gothic taste and the nooks are made from 

poplar, as a secondary wood. The desk is on loan to the museum 

from The Edgecombe County Historical Society. The desk serves 

as the repository for Haviland Porcelain China from Limoges, 

France.  The china is 20th century and a gift to the museum from 

Ruth Clark. 

 

 

 

 

The brass andirons belonged to the Governor Worth Family and are circa 1815.  The 

design of the fenders is similar to plates 28 and 

101 of A Collection of Designs for Household 

Furniture and Interior Decoration, a London 

publication written by George Smith in 1808. 

This design source was the most important 

design book in America from 1808-1820. His 

designs are Greco-Roman, Gothic and Egyptian. 

There is a similar set of andirons in the Cotton-

Howard House, circa 1825, which is missing the 

fender. It has been passed down that the missing 

fender was sacrificed for armaments during the 

Civil War. The new andirons must have aptly 

complemented a chimney piece, with all its neo-classical composition and brought the 

black hole of the fireplace opening alive with their majestic height, luster, and 

ornamentation, not to mention warmth and comfort from the chill. Indeed, the chimney 

was the centerpiece of the room. 
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Wilson Hall (Center Hall) 
 

Louis Dicken Wilson (1789-1847) owned the Grove from 1831-

1847. The portrait is in the original frame, circa 1820, and was 

most likely painted while he served in the State Senate. He was a 

local attorney and guardian for local orphans. He encouraged the 

development of public education in the 1830ôs. In 1846, at the 

age of 58, he resigned his seat in the senate and mustered two 

companies of soldiers in 1847, sailing to Vera Cruz, Mexico to 

fight in the Mexican War. While in Mexico, he succumbed to 

yellow fever and died. He is buried on our Town Common. 

Loved by his constituents, the town and county of Wilson are his 

namesakes. A broadside announcing the sale of the Blount-Bridgers property upon the 

death of Wilson is by the front door. 

 

 

This clock belonged to Solomon Pender, son of John Pender, who 

was born May 22, 1783, and died September 8, 1852.  Solomon 

Pender is buried on the banks of Hendricks Creek in Tarboro, on 

the land once owned by Henry Clark Bridgers in 1921. This clock 

was bought by Solomon Pender in 1832 and passed down to his 

son, Josiah S. Pender upon his death. Mrs. Laura Cook, wife of 

Josiah S. Pender, gave the clock to David Pender, the great 

grandson of J. J. B. Pender. New works were put in it in 1916. 

 

 

 

A worktable in Sheraton/Classical Revival style with drawers 

once belonged to Louis D. Wilson and dates to 1815. It is 

constructed of mahogany and poplar. The port of Tarboro 

was a source for many imported woods such as this 

mahogany. 
 

 

 

This walnut drop leaf table is of oval form in the 

Baroque or Queen Anne style. It utilizes hard yellow 

pine as a secondary wood and dates circa 1750. The 

gates are secured with tenons and the box is framed 

using hand wrought rose-head nails. The hinges and 

screws are original, but there have been repairs made 

to two of the pad feet.  This table is one of two made 

by the same person or shop and may be the earliest 

example of Edgecombe County furniture. Ethel Pike 

Bass acquired this table in the 1930ôs and it is on loan to the museum from Bill Bass.  
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On the wall hangs a plat of Redding Blountôs farm in Pitt 

County, which consisted of 138 acres. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Also on the wall hangs a deed to lot number 57. Lot 57 was 

the thirteenth lot sold in Tarboro and is located in the 

southwest corner of St. James and Trade Streets. The lot 

was sold on March 24, 1761 to Thomas Goodson. The deed 

specifies that a dwelling house must be created in 3 years. 
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Parlor Room 
 

 

The Roanoke Basin desk and bookcase found is this room is made 

from walnut and various other woods. The bookcase is circa 1780, 

with a slightly earlier date for the desk. The desk has four lovely 

drawers and the piece is referenced on page 287-88 of The Furniture 

of Coastal North Carolina 1700-1820 by in John Bivins, Jr. Ethel 

Pike Bass collected this particular piece. 

 

          

 

The portrait of William Smith Battle (1823-

1915) was painted by William Gaul Brown in 1858. William 

Smith Battle was the president of the Wilmington and Weldon 

Railroad.  The Wilmington and Weldon Railroad, prior to the 

Civil War, was the longest railroad in America and became the 

lifeline of the Confederate States of America. William and his 

wife, Mary Elizabeth Dancy Battle, lived at the Barracks, an 

imposing brick house designed by the famous English architect 

William Percival. 

 

 

Mary Elizabeth Dancy Battle (1925) was the daughter of 

Francis Little Dancy. Mary married William Smith Battle in 

1845 and together they had ten children. 

 

 

 

Westray Battle, brother of Penelope, 

as a child, circa 1854. The 

background of mountains and a 

column are evidence of the classical training of the artist. 

Artists would often provide settings and bodies on which to 

add the face of the sitter, an expedient way in which to 

produce more work. There are two other pictures of Dr. Battle 

in the house. 

 

 

Dr. Westray Battle, circa 1920. Orlando Rowland painted this 

portrait in London. Dr. Westray Battle was the recipient of 

numerous civilian and military honors for his work in the 

treatment of malaria in the Panama Canal. In later years, he 

returned to Asheville. 
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The Framed wood on linen sampler is the work of Frusannah 

Perry who was born on April 2, 1793. Frusannah completed the 

needlework on May 1, 1805. Frusannah was the great, great 

grandmother of E.H. Marrow, Jr. of Tarboro. Early Southern 

needlework is quite scarce. 

 

 

 

The framed silk embroidered-on-linen 

sampler, dated 1833 incorporates cross, eyelet and rice stitches. 

Given to the BBH Foundation by Barbara Heilbroner Campbell. 

 

 

 

 

In the corner sits a marble top table with a bottom 

shelf. This walnut veneer table has casters and may 

once have served as a washstand. There is also 

evidence of a marble back panel that is now missing. 

This piece is mid nineteenth century. 

 

 

 

 

The Cummings and Canfield 

square grand piano is circa 1854. 

It bears heavily carved rosewood 

with mother-of-pearl keys and 

painted scenes above the 

keyboard. This form was a space 

saving modification of the 

Steinway Grand piano. Alice 

Weeks Gordon Patrick gave the 

piano to the museum. 

 

 

 

The walnut center table has a marble top and is circa 

mid-nineteenth century. The square solid-walnut shaft 

is noteworthy and may indicate local manufacture. 

These tables were used for many purposes.  Games, 

dining, writing or sewing, our modern all occasions 

counterpart. 
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The mahogany veneer settee has the original finish and may be attributed to the workshop 

of Thomas Day, the African American cabinet-maker. It awaits period re-upholstery.  

Purchased in 2005 from the Battle family. 

 

The ladyôs sewing table is made of yellow pine and displays an 

eighteenth century style of construction. The materials used for 

construction seem to be reclaimed older lumber. 

 

 

 

 

The Chandelier of cut and pressed glass 

is twentieth century. The prisms were for 

reflecting light and providing added 

illumination. 

 

 

 

 

The mourning wreath represents a 

Southern tradition of weaving hair into a wreath and 

placing on front doors of homes of deceased. Ladies would 

collect hairs from family and friends, as well as personal 

combs and hairbrushes. Jewelry pieces in this style were 

also constructed. J. Chris Wilson gifted this item to us. 

 

 

 

 

 

A typical wedding dress of the early 1800ôs. 
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Edgecombe Room 
 

 

 

The walnut parlor game table, circa 1850, has a 

folding top with a concertina movement when 

opened onto a lyre-shaped base. It also has walnut 

veneers and casters for easy movement.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

A number of early English artifacts related to the 

formation and naming of Edgecombe County 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The framed collection of signatures 

recognizes area residents that served in town, 

county, state, and federal elected government 

positions, including county commissioners, 

state senators, a governor, and a U.S. 

congressman during the years of 1760-1850.  

 

 

 

 

Two coats of arms belonging to the 

Edgcumbe family are also located here. The 

color emblem of the Edgcumbe coat of arms 

belonged to Richard Edgcumbe and other to 

Lord George Edgcumbe, Richardôs brother. 

The phrase ñAu Playsire Fort De Dieuò, 

found on the coat of arms, translates to ñAt 

the Mighty Will of God.ò The coat of arms of 

Richard Edgecombe had been reproduced for 

sale in a limited number during 2010, 

commemorating the 250
th
 anniversary of 

Tarboro as the County Seat. 
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Edgecombe County is named for Richard Edgcumbe, the first 

Baron of Mount Edgcumbe and Lord of the English Treasury.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lord George Edgcumbe.  
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Back Stair Hall  
 

Colonel John L. Bridgers (1821-1884). This portrait is a copy 

of a photograph by S. R. Alley of Tarboro. Colonel Bridgers 

was an honor graduate of the University of North Carolina in 

1843. He was a businessman, a state legislator and a member 

of the Secession Convention in Montgomery, Alabama in 

1860. He organized the Edgecombe Guard and participated in 

the first land battle of the war at Bethel Church, York County, 

VA on June 10, 1861. Colonel Bridgers served six months in 

the Confederate Army, including a term as Commander at 

Fort Macon. John and his first wife Rebecca purchased the 

house in 1850 and remodeled it, adding the Victorian wrap-

around porch at that time.  

 

 

Rebecca Dicken Bridgers (1829-1865) of Halifax 

County married John L. Bridgers April 10 1847. She 

was the great-granddaughter of Benjamin Dicken, 

one of the commissioners who laid out the Town of 

Tarboro. She had two children while living in this 

house. The portrait is pencil/charcoal by and 

unknown artist. 

 

 

 

 

Mary Elizabeth Bridgers (1844-1918) was the second wife of 

Colonel John L. Bridgers. She was a member of the Battle 

Family of Edgecombe, who were among the townôs first 

settlers. This is photo, circa 1870, is from the Bridgers family. 

 

 

 

 

 

The denticulate pediment above the open 

doorway between the front and back center hall 

is from the original porches. The allocation of a 

room with an open thread stair passage is 

notable. Not often seen in domestic buildings of 

the period, this was a commentary on Mr. Blountôs urbanity and wealth. William Paineôs 

Builders Companion, published in 1808 in London, inspired the scroll under the step 

treads. 
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The mahogany brass bound field desk was the 

property of Captain John L. Bridgers. The desk is 

English and retains the original stationerôs label, 

N. Middleton ANO 1760. The desk was used in the 

campaign of the Battle of Big Bethel, Virginia, in 

June 1861 and at Fort Macon, North Carolina, in 

April 1862. It is on loan from the H. C. Bridgers, 

Estate.  

 

 

 

The side table of mahogany has two carved gothic 

drawers with similar carved detail on each side.  The 

carved flowers and fluted legs ending in raised spade 

feet date to 1850. 

 

 

 

 

The walnut step back bookcase houses two center drawers. It is 

constructed of walnut with yellow pine as the secondary wood. It was 

manufactured locally in the late nineteenth century. It has descended in 

the Bridgers family and now is the repository of law books belonging 

to Captain Bridgers and General Cox. 

 

 

 

Private Henry Lawson Wyatt, a member of Captain Bridgers, 

Co. A, 1
st
 Regiment N.C. Volunteers was killed at the Battle of 

Big Bethel, and was the first Confederate soldier to die during 

the Civil War. He is buried at Hollywood Cemetery in 

Richmond. The fountain on the Tarboro Town Common is a 

memorial to Private Wyatt. The funds for purchasing the 

fountain were donated by children of the Tarboro community. 

Private Wyatt was an apprentice to Louis Bond, an important 

local cabinetmaker.  

 

 

 

The Battle of Big Bethel lithograph dated June 10, 1861. Drawn 

by Brigadier General William Gaston Lewis of Edgecombe 

County. The map marks the spot where Private Henry Lawson 

Wyatt, Co. A. 1
st
 Regt. N.C. Volunteers of Tarboro was killed. 
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Stair Well 
 

 

 

 

A deed for 260 acres sold to John Jones by the state of North 

Carolina in 1784. The deed was signed in New Bern by Royal 

Governor Alexander Martin and is currently housed in a 

modern polymer frame. 
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Top Floor Landing 
 

 

Made of beech wood and yellow 

pine, this remarkable chest was 

crafted by someone trained in 

Bermuda, Jamaica or another 

Caribbean island. The stair 

dovetails were originated in the 

crafts of that area. The chest is 

featured in John Bivensô 

publication, Furniture of North 

Carolina. Mr. and Mrs. Romaine 

Howard have loaned this piece to 

the museum.  

 

 

 

 

Bureau with mirror, mahogany veneer, made by F. L. Bond 

Tarboro. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Victorian book case containing Hobson Pittmanôs still life 

vessels. 
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Hobson Pittman Studio 
 

 

 

 

Hobsonôs work table. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Hobsonôs easel with his last acrylic work before his death. In the 

picture is a pomegranate, which in Greek mythology represents 

life and death. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Book case containing reference books for his students along with 

personal belongings. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sofa upon which his students sat while Hobson critiqued 

their work. 
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Hobson Pittman Memorial Gallery 

 

 
 

Formerly three rooms ï likely two bedrooms and a ladiesô sitting/dressing room. Now 

used for art exhibits, receptions, music lessons, meetings, and sometimes weddings. 

 

 

 

 

 

Elevator Hall  
 

Oil portrait of Hobson Pittman by Charles Frith, one of Hobsonôs students.
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Pender Museum 
 

 

Background 
 

Edgecombe County farmhouse built around 1810. It was moved from its former location 

near Conetoe to the present site in 1968. Built by Silas Everett, it became the property of 

his wife, Rebecca, upon his death in 1839. She left it to her granddaughter, Susan 

Rebecca Blount, daughter of Levi Blount and his wife, Susan Everett. Levi Blount was 

related to General Thomas Blount. Susan first married John Porter, and then later married 

John Walston. The house remained in the Walston family for sixty years. 

 

 

Front Room 
 

 

The walnut drop-leaf table, circa 1800, was formerly used 

in this house by the Walston family. Set of six plank 

bottom chairs, nineteenth century 

 

 

 

 

The corner cupboard, circa 1825, was made near Leggett, 

Edgecombe County. It is made of yellow pine and retains the 

original Prussian blue paint. It displays interesting dentil work 

and a heavy cornice. The contents of the cupboard consist of 

china, pottery, brass, and pewter. 

 

 

 

 

Laura Melvina Pender (1840-1918) was the wife Captain Josiah 

Pender. Her husband, who studied art in Italy, may have drawn 

this portrait. 

 

 

 

 

 

Early 1800s pie chest with milk paint. 
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Master Bedroom 
 

 

Ladder back rocking chair. 

 

 

 

Brass chamber stick circa 1810 

 

 

Two small Persian rugs 

 

 

 

Rope bed, appears to be from 

New England because of the 

steel ratchet mechanism and 

maple wood. On it sits a feather 

mattress. The white cotton 

bedspread was made near Old 

Sparta in 1819. 

 

Pair of brass candlesticks, circa 1810 

 

Iron andirons 

 

Small shaving stand, circa 1875 

 

 

Pine blanket chest.  

 

 

Spinning wheel. 

 

 

 

 

 

Low hearth chair and rocking chair, Edgecombe County 

companion pieces from the early 1800ôs. 

 

 

This is an enlargement of a tintype of Susan Blount Porter and 

John Porter taken circa 1858. Susan was the granddaughter of 

Silas Everett, builder of the house. 
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Nursery 
 

 

 

 

Painted pine cupboard made in Edgecombe County, circa 1835. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Twine winder used for making rope or skeins of cotton 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Small ladder-back chair 

 

 

 

Lean-To Addition  
 

 

 

 

Simple rope slave bed of oak 
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Appendix 1 
Source of Title to the Blount-Bridgers House 

(Author unknown) 

 

By charter in 1663, King Charles II of England granted the province of Carolina 

to eight Lords Proprietors. The province of Carolina had been named for Charles I by 

that King and embraced what is now the states of North and South Carolina. One of the 

eight Lords Proprietors was Sir George Carteret, who was succeeded in 1696 by his son 

and heir, Lord John Carteret, Baron of Hawes and later, Earl of Granville. In 1729 the 

Lords Proprietors, with the exception of Lord Granville, returned their charter to 

the Crown for which each received 2500 pounds exclusive of arrearages of rent. Later a 

Commission appointed by the Crown designated Lord Granville one-eighth interest in 

the Province of Carolina. The domain so designated embraced the Northeast portion, 

and about one-half the area, of the present State of North Carolina. 

 

Out of that domain Lord Granville made several grants or patents of land on 

the Tar River to Joseph Howell. Included in such patents were about 150 acres of 

land that Howell conveyed to the five incorporators of the town of Tarboro 

immediately prior to charter of that Town on November 30, 1760. That charter 

stated that a town common had been laid out on the original plat of the town, as so 

laid out the town common completely encircled the Town. The portion thereof on 

the then Northern Boundary of the Town constitutes the present town common.  

 

Subsequently, Lord Granville granted additional patents of land to Joseph 

Howell. One of such additional patents, dated June 1, 1762, embraced a large tract 

of land adjoining Howellôs lands covered by the earlier patents and included the 

property upon which the community house now stands. That tract adjoined the 

town of Tarboro on the north. James Dunlop, a merchant of Virginia, sued shortly 

thereafter Joseph Howell for 2817 pounds, 10 shillings, in the Superior Court at 

Edenton, at that time the seat the local government. Immediately upon obtaining 

judgment in that action, Dunlop secured a writ directed to the Sheriff of Edge 

County, who pursuant thereto attached certain property of Howell in that county 

and sold the same at public auction to satisfy Dunlopôs judgment.  

 

A part of the tract of land that was covered by the patent of June 1, 1762, 

was sold to Dunlop on December 22, 1766, and Joseph Moore, Sheriff, therefor 

executed a deed on May 4, 1767. On the same day Dunlop conveyed the tract to 

Henry Irwin. Henry Irwin a merchant in Tarboro before the revolution was made a 

Lieutenant- Colonel in the Continental Army and was killed at the battle of 

Germantown in September 1777.  

 

He willed certain of his property, including what is now the community 

house property, to his eldest son, also named Henry Irwin. Henry Irwin the son and 

his brother Lewis Irwin both died without issue and that property devolved upon a 

third son, John Alexander Irwin, who on December 14, 1793, sold a tract 
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containing 400 acres and embracing that property and certain other property 

adjoining the Town of Tarboro on the east to Blake Baker.  

 

On July 3, 1795 Blake Baker conveyed 296 acres of such tract adjoining 

the Town of Tarboro to Thomas Blount, a member of Congress of North Carolina. 

According to Jeremiah Battleôs History of North Carolina (1810) Thomas Blount 

built his home on his property adjoining the town of Tarboro about 1808. 

Apparently is the present Community House of Tarboro.  

     

Thomas Blount died February 7, 1812, leaving no issue. By his will 

dated August 23, 1808, he devised to his nephew, John Gray Blount Jr., 296 

acres of land adjoining the town of Tarboro that he acquired from Blake 

Baker. That tract irregular in shape and extended eastwardly for Hendricks 

Creek in a straight line and partially along the northern edge of the Town 

Common to a point just beyond what is now Panola Street, thence 

northwestwardly by a staggered course to a short line about three- fifths of a 

mile beyond the present railroad station, and thence southwardly by a 

staggered course to Hendricks Creek, and down that creek. 

 

John Gray Blount Jr., by his will proved at the November Court of 

1828, devised all his lands to his wife, Sallie Lee Blount, who on August 31, 

1831. Conveyed to Louis D. Wilson the land described as the tract adjoining 

the town of Tarboro and containing 296 acres, which Thomas Blount had 

previously bought from Blake Baker.  

 

Louis S. Wilson was a senator in the North Carolina Legislature. In 1846 he 

obtained a leave of absence from the Senate to serve in the Mexican War. He was 

made a Colonel in the United Sates Army and died of fever at Vera Cruz on August 

12, 1847. His will dated May 26, 1830, left the residue of his property as follows. 

ñThirdly ï I give to the Chairman of the County Court of 

Edgecombe, and his successor in office, the residue of my estate, both 

real and personal, for the use and benefit of the poor (paupers) of said 

County, to be appropriated and managed under the superintendence of 

the Justices of said County.ò 

Pursuant to a court order following the petition by the Chairman of the 

County Court and the heirs of Colonial Wilson a notice, dated October 10, 1848, 

was published a public sale of ñThe Grove,ò as it was then called, containing 296 

acres and being the property of the late Louis D. Wilson. A copy of that notice is 

now hanging in the hall of the Community House.  

In November 1848 ñThe Groveò tract was sold to Joseph J. B. Pender, the 

highest bidder, and Keneln H. Lewis, the Clerk and Master in Equity executed a 

deed therefore describing such tract as containing 322 ¼ acres, on May 1, 1851. 

The proceeds of such sale apparently became part of the charitable bequest, 

which was reported by the court in 1855 to contain $12,000. 
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 On May 4, 1849, Joseph J. B. Pender deeded to John L. Bridgers a part of 

ñThe Groveò property described as that part of ñthe Blount land that lies East of 

the center of the road that leads from the Main Street in Tarboro in a Northern 

directionò. That deed was not recorded until March 14, 1871, almost 20 years 

later. 

In the years that John L. Bridgers owned such tract he sold off various 

portions thereof. On September 9, 1879, John L. Bridgers and his wife, Mary E, 

Bridgers, conveyed to George Howard an undivided one- half interest in the 

property know as ñThe Grove,ò containing about 10 acres, being the land 

bounded by Main Street on the west, by the street running in front of William S. 

Battleôs house on the north, by St. Patrick Street extended on the east, and by the 

street running between said Grove and the dwelling house and lot of Dr. J. W. 

Baker and the pasture lot of Fred Phillips on the South, less 4 acres theretofore 

sold to other persons.  

 

On July 13, 1881, John L. Bridgers and Mary E. Bridgers conveyed to 

George Howard the remaining one- half interest in the Grove as described above 

and also all of ñThe Groveò lying east of St. Patrick Street. The latter deed was 

joined in by Marcus J. Battle, the trustee of the separate property of Mary E. 

(Battle) Bridgers by an ante nuptial agreement.  

 

On January 3, 1883, George Howard and his wife, Anna S. Howard 

conveyed that portion of ñThe Groveò which now comprises the Community 

House property to S. S. Nash, C. C. Lanier, and L. L. Station. That portion was 

described as the Grove house and the lot cut off with the same as surrounded by 

the streets running through the said ñThe Groveò property and laying right in the 

tract of St. Patrick Street extended northwardly the said lot being 185 feet by 

about 315 feet. The description in such deed of the land thereby conveyed 

erroneously refers to St. Andrews Street as St. Patrick Street. That error was 

perpetuated in subsequent deeds to such property as late as 1922. 

 

C. C. Lanier died April 2, 1883, and his one- third interest in ñThe Groveò 

property descended to his daughter, Miriam R. Lanier. On June 6, 1887, S. S. Nash and 

his wife, Annie Gray Nash, and L. L. Staton and his wife, Kate L. Staton, deeded the 

remaining two-thirds interest therein to Sarah M. Lanier, widow of C. C. Lanier. Sarah N. 

Lanier deeded such two-thirds interest to her daughter, Miriam R. Lanier, on December 

7, 1898. 

 

On June 1, 1922, Miriam R Lanier sold ñThe Groveò property to B. Mabry Hart. 

On April 7, 1931, B. Mabry Hart delivered a deed of trust covering such property to 

Donnell Gilliam, trustee, and Edgecombe Homestead Loan Association, as security for a 

loan. The property was therein described as a lot 185 feet by 315 feet lying between the 

two prongs on St. Andrews Street and on the south side of Philips Street, On January 9, 

1933, the Trustee foreclosed deed of trust and the property conveyed to Edgecombe 

Homestead and Loan Association. 
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In September, 1933, Donnell Gilliam was by deed made Trustee of that property 

to convey it to the town of Tarboro upon the payment in full to Edgecombe Homestead 

and Loan Association for a note in the amount of $15,000, of which $4,500 was for the 

purchase of the property and $10,500 represented a loan for the purpose of making 

certain improvements on the property. Upon the Payment of that note Donnell Gilliam, 

Trustee, conveyed the community House property to the Town of Tarboro by deed dated 

September 23, 1939. 

 

July 1, 1949 
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Appendix 2 
Jeremiah Battle Article on Edgecombe County 
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Appendix 3 
Old Blount Family Tree 
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Appendix 4 

New Blount Family Tree 
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